



ESPRIT - ADDRESSABLE FIRE CONTROL PANEL CONFIGURATION SOFTWARE USER MANUAL

This manual covers the programming of the one to two loop and one to four loop Esprit-Argus & Apollo Addressable fire alarm control panels, using the Haes Configuration Panel software.

SAFETY IMPORTANT NOTICE

PLEASE READ THIS MANUAL CAREFULLY AND OBSERVE ALL ADVICE GIVEN WITHIN IT.

THIS PARTICULARLY APPLIES TO THE PRECAUTIONS NECESSARY TO AVOID ELECTRO-STATIC DISCHARGE



Important Safety Notes

The panel is safe to operate provided it has been installed in compliance with the manufacturer's instructions and used in accordance with this manual.

Hazardous voltages are present inside the panel—DO NOT open it unless you are qualified and authorised to do so. There is no need to open the panel's enclosure except to carry out commissioning, maintenance and remedial work. This work must only be carried out by competent service personnel who are fully conversant with the contents of the panel's installation manual and have the necessary skills for maintaining this equipment.

This fire alarm system requires periodic checks as specified in the local regulations. It is the responsibility of the system user to ensure it is regularly serviced and maintained in good working order.

The product must be installed, commissioned and maintained for operation in accordance with the instructions and the applicable wiring codes of practice and national standard regulations for fire systems appropriate to the country and location of the installation.

This equipment is designed to be operated from 230VAC 50/60 Hz mains supplies and is of Class I construction. As such it must be connected to a protective earthing conductor in the fixed wiring of the installation. Failure to ensure that all conductive accessible parts of this equipment are adequately bonded to the protective earth will render the equipment unsafe.

Disclaimer

No responsibility can be accepted by the manufacturer or distributors of this fire alarm panel for any misinterpretation of an instruction or guidance note or for the compliance of the system as a whole. The manufacturer's policy is one of continuous improvement and we reserve the right to make changes to product specifications at our discretion and without prior notice. E & O E.

Warnings



Before installation, refer to the Ratings shown on the label inside the product and to the 'Specifications Chart' in this document. If you are unclear on any point, please DO NOT proceed. Contact the manufacturer or supplier for clarification and guidance.

Only Trained service personnel should undertake the Installation, Programming and Maintenance of this equipment.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SAFETY	2
IMPORTANT NOTICE	2
Important Safety Notes	2
Disclaimer	2
Warnings	2
TABLE OF CONTENTS	3
PRODUCT OVERVIEW	4
General	
System Requirements	
HAES CONFIGURATION PANEL	5
Description	5
Definitions	5
Toolbar	6
Loop Setup	7
Zones Setup	
Groups Setup	
Output Profiles	
Panel	
Network	
Transfer	23
Mimic	
INSTALLATION	. 26
CONFIGURING THE SYSTEM	. 26
New Panel Setup	
System Design	
Loop Setup	
Populating a Loop	
Configuring devices on a Loop	
Zone Setup	
Populating a Zone	
Configuring a Zone	
Configuring devices in a Zone	
Groups Setup	
Forming devices into Groups	20
Configuring a Group	

PRODUCT OVERVIEW

General

Quality, reliability, ease of use and feature rich are attributes that are consistent across the entire range of Haes fire alarm control panels. The ESPRIT Addressable panels encompass all these attributes, to provide the fire alarm engineer's panel of choice.

For the fire alarm engineer, the panel has been designed to be easy to install and to minimise labour costs, by providing ample room for tasks such as wiring and changing batteries. Activation is via key switch or access code, which means you should always be able to work on the panel and the one man walk tests will help reduce the cost of maintaining the fire alarm system.

ESPRiT Addressable fire control panels are designed to be intuitive and flexible for the fire alarm engineer to programme and incorporates a large 240 x 64-pixel graphical display, with an easy-to-navigate menu system, which uses simple discernible icons in each section.

Simplicity is one of the most important aspects when considering the end user of a fire alarm panel. The easyto-read control panel, with its graphical LCD display and five marked control buttons, and the 3-step silence functionality gives non-technical people the confidence to correctly manage their fire alarm system.

All inputs and outputs are fully programmable and there are options to have delays to the outputs. The programming features also include 3 different modes to help reduce false alarms. Local fire authorities are demanding this type of functionality to reduce unwanted callouts from alarm receiving centres.

As an addressable panel, signals from detectors, manual call points or any other devices are individually identified at the control panel's LCD graphical display. In addition, the control panel LED indicators will provide a simple 'at a glance' overview of which zone or zones have gone into the alarm condition, showing the extent of fire or smoke spread.

The panel supports connections for up to a maximum of eight main panels and eight repeaters, via an RS-485 Network.

ESPRiT Addressable panels are approved to European standards EN54-2 & 4, Fire Detection and Alarm Systems – Control & Indicating Equipment.

This product has been designed and manufactured in the United Kingdom.

The Haes Configuration panel software enhances the ease of programming for the panel by enabling the engineer to both download existing panel configurations for amendment, or programme new panel configuration 'off panel' before uploading onto the panel. Programming of the configuration uses easy to follow graphical depictions of devices, Loops, Zones and Groups.

System Requirements

The Haes Configuration Panel software is designed for use with Windows 7 and Windows 10 Operating System. It is not intended for use with Apple macOS, Android or Linux OS.

The following are required:

- Laptop or Tablet device running Windows 7 or Windows 10 OS with i5 processor or equivalent, operating at 1.6GHz and a minimum of 16GB on board ram.
- Cable with a USB-B connector.

HAES CONFIGURATION PANEL

Description

The Haes Configuration Panel software allows the fire system engineer to configure the Haes Technologies Esprit addressable fire control panel (Argus and Apollo protocol), and the wider system and attached devices, using a laptop or tablet device, before downloading the configuration to the panel.

The configuration software also allows the engineer to upload previously created configuration, from the panel, to enable easier modification of the configuration (from individual devices, to the whole system).

The Configuration Panel software toolbar opens a range of Setup windows, on which the configuration can be designed, and the data can be transferred to/from the Esprit panel.

Note: If any new devices are added to any loop using the configuration software, the download to the panel must be followed by the learn process started from the menu system of the panel itself to allow the panel to confirm that the configuration matches the actual devices attached to the loops.

Definitions

The following terms are used in the setup of the system:

- Loop an addressable communications bus, to which input and output devices are attached.
- Zone a selection of input and output devices (possibly, but not necessarily, in a single geographical location). Note devices from more than one loop may be allocated in a zone.
- Group a collection of input and output devices (e.g. detectors and sounders) that are related by a cause and effect definition. The devices in a group may or may not be in the same geographical location (e.g. input devices within a group may be in room/building A, whilst the output devices may be in room/building B, to enable a warning to be given in building B that an incident is occurring in building A). When the defined input conditions for the group have been met, the group becomes activated and the output and sounder devices in the group activate their defined output response.

Toolbar

- New open a new configuration file.
- Open open a saved configuration file.
- Save saves changes made to the current configuration file.
- Save as save the current configuration file to a drive location.
- Export export the open configuration file to another user/drive location.
- Undo/Redo undo/redo the last step.
- Loop 1/Loop 2 etc. Loop setup, for allocating devices to addresses on each Loop and configuring the devices individually.
- Zones Zone setup, for configuring the Zones and individual devices in a Zone.
- Groups Group setup, for allocating devices to a Group and configuring individual devices in a Group, including the input and output conditions.
- Output Profiles output profile setup for configuring the various tones required for a sounder.
- Panel panel configuration setup page. For configuring the panel (e.g. LCD brightness, time, buzzer volume, logo, dependency mode, etc.).
- Network network configuration setup to define inter-panel behaviour.
- Transfer transfers the populated configuration file to the panel.
- Mimic displays a graphic of the control panel.
- Port: The Port settings are to configure which COM port is to be used to communicate with the panel. The drop-down is only populated with COM ports that are available. These are added to the drop-down when the cable is connected.
- Refresh refreshes the COM port connection.
- Connect/Disconnect establishes the connection between the portable computing device and the panel, ready for the transfer of the configuration file and breaks the connection when finished transferring data files. The type of panel connected must match the type defined in the configuration data. This is set when a new file is created or when an existing file is loaded.



Loop Setup

The Toolbar displays Loop setup buttons (Loop 1, Loop 2, etc., depending on the number of loops selected in the initial panel setup), for accessing the Loop setup window.

The Loop setup window is used for allocating devices to addresses on the Loop and for configuring individual devices. The Loop setup window is made up of:

- a list of All Devices (Detectors, Call Points, Sounders, etc.), that are compatible with the chosen protocol (Argus/Apollo), together with a Filter box for narrowing the device selection and a 'Rubber Stamp' button
 for inserting multiple copies of a given device into the device address table.
- a device address table, which displays the devices allocated to each address on the Loop (240 addresses per loop), which can be displayed in either Table View or List View:
 - in Table View, the loop is displayed as a grid, with a graphic of the device and a label to identify it. The device label for all devices displayed in the grid can be changed, using the Label: dropdown at the top of the window, to display:
 - Part Number
 - Device Name
 - Zone Label



- in List View, the loop is displayed as a list table showing a graphic of the device at each address, together with:
 - Address
 - Type
 - Device Name
 - Zone Name
 - Zone
 - Total Groups

	0	Lang 2 Long 3 Lang 4 Zowen	Conger Pades Part Tard	<u> </u>	Petri anteni d
- <u>2</u>					
Deim A	Table New List New				
Detectors	Aller Los	1000	Tota Nata	Test Test Data and	
20 Vite statigate Optical Detector			Adverte intered and		
Er Or Weingert upper Optical Detector -		LOOP FEERLE F	DENCE 20ME INC		Hardwood and the second
A 1000 intelligent Optical Detector	2 JM A200	LOOP 1 DEVICE 2	06ACE5DME002	1 1	and the second second second
A1000, Intelligent Light Optical Detector	3 D VOP100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 3	DEVICE 204E BS2	2 1	0 #33366 32 33
30 K38 Intelligent Multicitieria Detector	4 58 A200	LOOP 1 DEVICE 4	DEVICE 204E IR2	5 1	IE CONTRACTOR
 DCDD Helligert Cight Multicitiera Delec 	3 👩 УСЗЛОБ-Н	LOOP 1 DEVICE 5	DEVICE 2046 ID4	4 1	
A2000 Intelligent Multicitieria Detector	6 🚱 VLM100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 6	DEVICE 20ME RM	4 1	97-58-millio
A2000, Intelligent Light Multicitierie Dete	7 💽 VOP100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 7	06//CE2046 804	4 1	
W250 Intelligent Thermal Detector - class -	8 🙆 V.8100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 8	00x0120x6 804	4 1	
EV00 Intelligent Light Thermal Detector	 NOTE 	LOOP 1 DEVCER	00vCI 20vE 80	1 1	
AUSOR, Intelligent Light Thermal Detector		LOOP L DELATE IN	Advertise and advertised and		
30 V30 Inteligent Themal Detector - class I		LOOP FIRENCE IN	Concentration		
D000 Heliget Light Themal Detector	11 D VLDODH	LOOP 1 DEVICE 11	DEVCEZONE BO		Long-No. 1
dis A2500 Intelligent Thermal Detector - class	2 🐻 VLM200	LOOP 1 DRIVER 12	DEVICE 20ME INTO		Total Population 1 (6
in A1500, Intelligent Light Thermal Detector	13 💽 VOP180	LOOP 1 DEVICE 13	DEVICE 2046 BD1	1 1	Defectors : a
in A2000 Intelligent Optical Detector/A1R	14 (B) A200	LOOP 1 DEVICE 14	06xr08.20x6.801	, ,	California e
(a) A300 intelligent Themail Detector - clas	13 💋 VL3700-H	LOOP 1 DEVICE 15	0Evict 2046 801	1 1	Madules : 0
A1000 Intelligent Optical Detector	14 🚱 VLM100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 16	06/r082046.801		Sounders : e
Gilhinis					Yeards : e
VCP100 intelligent Resettable Call Point					
VII OF 100 Vega Analogue Waterproof Cal					
ALOP102 Attain Intelligent Resettable Call					
Madules					
WAC 135 Single Relay Output Module Plat	21				
WADCIDS Single Relay Duty of Module DI	22				
WMC00 Single Relay Output Module Is	23				
VM100 Single Supervised Input Module I	24				
VMD130 Single Supervised Input Module	25				
WMM100 Single Supervised Input Module	26				
VMC101 Single Input & Single Supervise	27				
WADCOD Single Input & Single Supervis					-
WANCID Single Input & Single Supervice					
III INCOMENTATION AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN					

- a graphical view of either:
 - the Loop Card, showing the Loop No., Total Population of devices connected to the loop, number of each device type (detectors, call points, Modules, sounders, and visuals),
 - or, on selection of a device in either Table View or List View, a graphical view of the selected device at that address together with a table of information for the device (which differs between input and output devices), some of which is configurable for the individual device:
 - Input device (Call Point, Detectors, etc.):
 - Address
 - Description
 - Part Number
 - Type
 - Subtype
 - Zone
 - Input Groups and/or
 - Output Groups
 - Name
 - Day Sensitivity*
 - Sensitivity 1 4
 - Night Sensitivity*
 - Sensitivity 1 4
 - Detector Base*

- o Standard Base
- o Sounder Base¹
- Multitone Sounder Base²
- Input Attributes (Latching, Non-Alarm and Dependency* checkboxes)
- Output Responses
- Output device (Beacons, Sounders/Detector Sounder Base, etc.):
 - Address
 - Description
 - Part Number
 - Type
 - Subtype
 - Zone
 - Input Groups
 - and/or
 - Output Groups
 - Name
 - Outputs (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B):
 - o Alarm Response
 - Zonal Response
 - Evac Response
 - o Delay Response
 - Group Response
 - Stage Response
 - Alert Response
 - Class Change
 - Sounder Profile



Zones Setup

The Zones window is used to configure the Zones and the devices within the Zones. It presents three tables and a graphical display detailing:

- a list of all devices allocated to the Loops, which can be filtered by:
 - o Loop
 - о Туре
 - Device Name
 - o Zone
 - o **Group**
- List of All Zones, showing:
 - o Zone
 - o Device Name
 - Number of Devices allocated to the Zone
- Selected Zone devices, a list of all devices in the Zone selected in the List of All Zones table
- The graphical display on the right of the page displays either:
 - the devices allocated to the Zone currently selected in the List of All Zones; and can be used to configure each Zone (Name, Dependency, Tone Profile)
 - or, on selection of a device in the Selected Zone Devices table, a graphical view of the selected device, together with a table of information for the device selected (e.g. Address, Description, Part Number, Name, etc.), some of which is configurable (as previously seen in the Loop window.

HAES CONFIGURATION PANEL

-	₽₽►	00		U Loop 1	Coop 2	Zones	Groups	Profiles	Panel	1 Transfer	- Minic					Port :	<u> </u>	sh _ c
Loops	All Types		All Zones 🗸 🗸	NI Groups 🗸 🗸	List of all z	ones							Selected Zone D	evices				
1	🛥 A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 1		1 0	Zone	Name			D	evices Loo	p Addr	ress Devic	e	Name				
2	VCP100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 2		1 0	1	DEVICE Z	ONE 001		4	1	17		VCP 100	LOOP 1 DE	VICE 17			
3	A3500L	LOOP 1 DEVICE 3		1 0	2	DEVICE Z	ONE 002		6	5 .	18	10	A1000	1009 105	VICE 18			
	A 10 5100.41	1000 100/0004			3	DEVICE Z	ONE 003		e	5								
	- 113100 AT	LOOP TREVICE 4			4	DEVICE Z	ONE 004		5	, 1	19	-	A 1000	LOOP 1 DE	VICE 19			
5	A 1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 7		2 0	5	DEVICE Z	ONE 005		(1	20		A1000	LOOP 1 DE	VICE 20	acce e	-0	
6	. A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 6		2 0	6	DEVICE Z	ONE 006			1	21		A1000	LOOP 1 DE	VICE 21			
7	A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 7		2 0		DEVICE 2	CONE 007			1	22	-	A3500	LOOP 1 DE	VICE 22	Zone:	4	
8	A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 8		2 0	9	DEVICE 2	ONE 009			, I.	23	-	A3500	1009 105	VICE 23	Device Populati	on:9	
9	A HREIM	LOOP 1 DEVICE 9		7 0	10	DEVICE Z	ONE 010		0			-		1000		Zone Name :	DEVICE ZONE OF	04
	-	COURT & DETINE 3			11	DEVICE 2	ONE 011		(24	-	A3500L	LOOP 1 DE	VICE 29	Dependency:	OFF	-
10	VLS100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 10		2 0	12	DEVICE Z	ONE 012		(1	25	P	VLS100-AV	LOOP 1 DE	VICE 25	Tone Profile:	Default	
11	🛥 A3500L	LOOP 1 DEVICE 11		3 0	13	DEVICE Z	ONE 013		(TOTAL FIGHE.		
12	A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 12		3 0	14	DEVICE Z	ONE 014		(
13	- A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 13		3 0	15	DEVICE Z	ONE 015		(
		1000 1000000000000000000000000000000000			16	DEVICE Z	ONE 016		C									
14	A1000	LOOP I DEVICE 14		3 0	17	DEVICE Z	ONE 017		C									
15	A3500L	LOOP 1 DEVICE 15		3 0	18	DEVICE Z	ONE 018		(
16	VLS100-AV	LOOP 1 DEVICE 16		3 0	19	DEVICE Z	ONE 019		0	2								
17	VCP100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 17		4 0	20	DEVICE 2	ONE 020											
18	A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 18		4 0	21	DEVICE Z	ONE 022											
10		1000 1 05/205 10			23	DEVICE Z	ONE 023		0									
19	3 ×1000	LOOP I DEVICE 19		+ U	24	DEVICE Z	ONE 024		(
20	A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 20		4 0	25	DEVICE Z	ONE 025		0									
21	A1000	LOOP 1 DEVICE 21		4 0	26	DEVICE Z	ONE 026		(5								
22	🛥 A3500	LOOP 1 DEVICE 22		4 0	27	DEVICE Z	ONE 027		(
23	A3500L	LOOP 1 DEVICE 23		4 0	28	DEVICE Z	ONE 028		0									
24		1000 1000000 31			29	DEVICE Z	ONE 029		C	2								
29	ASSOL	LOOP TUEVICE 24		• •	30	DEVICE Z	ONE 030		(
25	VLS100-AV	LOOP 1 DEVICE 25		4 0	31	DEVICE Z	ONE 031		0	2								
					32	DEVICE Z	CONE 032											
					33	DEVICE 2	ONE 034		2									
					35	DEVICE 2	ONE 035											
					36	DEVICE Z	ONE 036		(
										¢					>			

Groups Setup

Each loop device can belong to any number of 64 groups. Active input devices can activate the groups to which they belong determined by the configuration of the group. When a group is activated, all the output devices in the group follow the group settings in their selected output profile unless a setting with a higher priority is activated such as a general or zonal alarm.

The Group Setup window is used to configure the devices allocated to the Loop(s) into Groups. It presents as four tables and a graphical display:

- a list of all devices allocated to the Loops, which can be filtered by:
 - o Loop
 - о Туре
 - o Device Name
 - o **Zone**
 - o **Group**
- List of All Groups, showing:
 - o Group
 - o Group Name
 - Number of Devices allocated to the Group.
- Input and Output devices for the selected Group, showing:
 - o Loop
 - o Address
 - Device type
 - o Device Name
 - o Zone
 - o **Group**
- The graphical display on the right of the page displays either:
 - the devices allocated to the Group currently selected in the list of Groups; and can be used to configure each Group:
 - Name
 - Activation Mode (Disabled, Normal, 2 Stage, Coincident and Isolation)
 - Disabled Group activations are disabled.
 - Normal Any device activation will activate the group.
 - 2 Stage The first device activation will cause a partial activation of the group and the stage setting in the output profile is used. A second and subsequent activations will cause a full activation to occur.
 - Coincident The number of active input devices in the group must equal or exceed the alarm count setting for the group to become active.
 - Isolation The activation of a non-alarm input device will disable all other devices in the group, both input and output devices.
 - Alarm Count (the number of input devices in a group that need to be in an alarm condition, before the output device triggers)

- Delay Time (time delay between the input devices going into an alarm condition and the output devices triggering)
- Latching
- Tone Profile
- or, on selection of a device in the Input or Output Device tables, a graphical view of the selected device, together with a table of information for the device selected (e.g. Address, Description, Part Number, Name, etc.), some of which is configurable (as previously seen in the Loop window.

1	F	1	-				Loop 1	CO Loop 2	CO Loop 3	CO Loop 4	Zones	10 Groups	Profiles	Panel	TH	D ander	(E) Minic		P	st:	• <u>Refresh</u>	Connec
All Loc	ips ~	All Type	s v	[All Zones	-	All Groups 🗸 🗸	Group		Name		Devices	^ Loo	p Address	De	evice	Name	Zone C				
1	1	D 11	5100-AV	LOOP 1 DEVICE 1		2	1 ^	1	GROUP 1			5	2	1 5	B A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 1	5				
	2	- v	100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 2		2	1	2	GROUP 2			4	2	2 5	2 A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 2	5	-	-	100	
			19100	LOOP LIDEVICE 3					GROUPS			9	2		-	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 3	5		-	-	
		-		1000 1000000		2		5	GROUP 5			0	,			2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 6					
1		-	100	LOOP TOENCE 4		1		6	GROUP 6			0					LOOP 2 DEVICE 0	- (°	-	-		100
- 3	5	Ф и	LS 100-AV	LOOP 1 DEVICE 5		4	0	7	GROUP 7			0	4	1 3	20 A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 7	3			-	-
*	5	В и	.8E100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 6		4	0	8	GROUP 8			0	2	8 3	B A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 8	3				
- 3	7	- w	CP 100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 7		4	0	9	GROUP 9			0	2	9 8	🖹 A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 9	3		0		
	8	-	/350	LOOP 1 DEVICE 8		4	1	10	GROUP 10			0	2	10 5	2 A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 10	3		9		
5	2	www.	CP 100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 9		3	0	11	GROUP 11			0										
		- v	100	1008 105/07 10				13	GROUP 13			0										
- 2			C 100 414	1000 100 000 00		- 23		14	GROUP 14			0										
- 2		2 "	5100-AT	LOOP I DEVICE II		-	0	15	GROUP 15			0							Group :	3		_
	12	N	.BE 100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 12		3	0	16	GROUP 16			0								100000000		
1	13	- W	CP100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 13		1	1	17	GROUP 17			0							Group Name :	GROUP 3		
3	14	» v:	100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 14		1	1	18	GROUP 18			0							Device Population	9		
đ	15	🙆 vi	\$100-AV	LOOP 1 DEVICE 15		1	1	19	GROUP 19			0							And in the local division of	and and		
3	16	N	BE 100	LOOP 1 DEVICE 16		1	1	21	GROUP 20			0	<					>	Activitation Mode :	Norma		
3	1	Ξ.	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 1		8	- A-	22	GROUP 22			0	Loc	p Address	De	evice	Name	Zone G	Alarm Count :	1		1
- 8	1	-		1000 300 400 3				23	GROUP 23			0	2	12	D v	LS100	LOOP 2 DEVICE 12	3	Delay Time :	0		
- 8	1	-	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 2		1		24	GROUP 24			0										
100	3	- A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 3		5	1	25	GROUP 25			0							Latching :			
- 3	٩. (- A	LCP 100	LOOP 2 DEVICE 4		5	0	26	GROUP 26			0							Tone Profile :	Default		
3	5	🜔 VI	5100	LOOP 2 DEVICE 5		5	0	27	GROUP 27			0										
6	5	-	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 6		3	1	20	GROUP 28			0										
1	,	-	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 7		3	1	30	GROUP 30			0										
		-	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 8				31	GROUP 31			0										
		-	2000	1000 3 05/000				32	GROUP 32			٥										
3	5	-	0.00	COOP 2 DETALE 9		9)		33	GROUP 33			0										
	10	355 A.	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 10		3	1	34	GROUP 34			0										
3	11	- A	LCP 100	LOOP 2 DEVICE 11		3	0	35	GROUP 35			0										
1	12	9 N	5100	LOOP 2 DEVICE 12		3	1	37	GROUP 17			0										
à	13	- A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 13		6	0	38	GROUP 38			0										
	14	- A	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 14		6	0	39	GROUP 39			0										
	15	-	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 15			0	40	GROUP 40			0										
				1000 100000		्र		41	GROUP 41			0										
- 34	10-	A.	2000	LOOP 2 DEVICE 16		6	0 y	42	GROUP 42			0	ve					>				

Output Profiles

The behaviour of the panel outputs is determined by allocating 1 of 15 output profiles to each device. Each profile is a set of output levels for the different types of status activation. The default profile for all devices is profile 1. Therefore, if all output devices are to behave the same, only this profile must be defined. If a group of outputs need to behave differently to the rest, another profile can be defined with the different settings and assigned to each of the devices in the group.

This page is used to configure the Tone and Volume of sounders assigned to a particular profile. Relay devices can also be assigned to a profile, in which case, with Argus panels, a volume of zero is interpreted as OFF and a non-zero volume is ON, and with Apollo panels the checkbox defines the OFF/ON behaviour. Each profile has a setting for the following statuses:

- Alarm An output device uses this setting when all active alarms are not in the zone associated with the device.
- Zonal An output device uses this setting when an alarm is active in the zone associated with the device.
- Evacuate An output device uses this setting when an evacuate is active.
- Delays An output device in a group with Delay active or any delayed alarm uses this setting.
- Alert An output device uses this setting when the Pulse input is active.
- Class Change An output device uses this setting when the Class Change input is active.
- Muster An output device uses this setting when the muster state is active.
- Stage 1 Group An output device in a group with Stage 1 active uses this setting.
- Group Active An output device in an active group uses this setting.
- Fault An output device uses this setting when a fault state is active.

	>		U Loop 1	CO Loop 2	CO Loop 3	U Loop 4	a Zor	nes	() Groups	Output Pro	files Panel	Network	11 Transfer			Port: COM6	Refresh Connect
utput Prof	ile Sett	ings															
Profile 1 Pr	rofile 2	Profile 3	Profile 4	Profile 5	Profi)) e 6	Profile 7	Pro	ofile 8	Profile 9	Profile 10	Profile 11	Profile 12	Profile 13	Profile 14	Profile 15	
rofile 1 Set	tings																
				Sounder To	ne		to able of			,							
Alarm :	Tone	1. Alternate V	Varble(250ms)		• v	olume		1	1	<u> </u>							
Zonal:	Tone	1. Alternate V	Varble(250ms)		• v	olume	isabled	1	2	3							
Evacuate :	Tone	1. Alternate V	Varble(250ms)		• v	olume	isabled	1	2	3							
Delays :	Tone	2.Continuous	Tone		- v	olume	isabled	1	2	3							
							isabled	1	2	3							
Alert :	Ione	2.Continuous	Tone		· ·	oiume				•							
ClassChange :	Tone	1. Alternate V	Varble(250ms)		• v	olume	isabio:	1	î								
Muster :	Tone	1. Alternate V	Varble(250ms)		<u> </u>	olume	isabled	1	2	3							
Stage 1 Group :	Tone	2. Continuous	Tone		• v	olume	isabled	1,	2	3							
Group Active :	Tone	1. Alternate V	Varble(250ms)			olume	isabled	1,	2	3							
					_		icabled		,								

HAES CONFIGURATION PANEL

Addressable File Protocol	Configuration Panel 1.126															- 0	*
D 🔒 🖂		Loop	D 1 Zon	es Groups	Output Profile	Panel	Network	1 Transfer	Minic				Por	t: COM3	▼ _ Refresh	Connect	
Sounder Sett	tings Tone 1.T1: Apollo Eva	ecuation Tone	T2:Apollo A	Nert Tone			▼ Volu	ume 1 2	3 4 5	6 7							_
Profile 1	Image: Profile 2 Image: Profile 3	Profile 4	Profile 5	Profile 6	Profile 7	Profile 8	Profile 9	Profile 10	Profile 11	Profile 12	Profile 13	Profile 14	Profile 15				
Profile 1	Settings																
				s	ounder Tone												
	Alarm :		Tone	1.Tone 1			-										
	Zonal :		Tone	1.Tone 1			<u>-</u>										
	Evacuate :		Tone	1.Tone 1			•										
	Delays :		Tone	2.Tone 2			•										
	Alert :		Tone	2.Tone 2			•										
	Class Change :		Tone	1.Tone 1			•										
	Muster :		Tone	1.Tone 1			<u> </u>										
	Stage 1 Group :		Tone	2.Tone 2			•										
	Group Active :		Tone	1.Tone 1			•										
	Fault :		Tone	1.Tone 1			_										

Panel

Panel Configurations window allows for the configuration of the following panel settings:

- Name
- No of Relay Cards
- Sounder Resound on New Zone checkbox
- Prepend Zone Names
- No of Loops
- Access Level 2 Code
- Access Level 3 Code
- Access Level 4 Code
- LCD Brightness
- LCD Contrast
- Buzzer Volume
- Day Start Time
- Night Start Time
- Battery Monitoring
- Battery Hi Impedance Monitoring
- Battery Charge During Alarm Monitoring
- Earth Fault Monitoring
- UPS Mode
- Daylight Saving Start:
 - First/Second/Third/Fourth/Final
 - Monday to Sunday
 - January to December
- Daylight Saving End:
 - First/Second/Third/Fourth/Final
 - Monday to Sunday
 - January to December
- Daylight Auto Adjust:
 - o Yes/No
- Company
- System
- Address/Details

- Logo:
 - o Open Logo
 - o Reset Logo

The logo size is 128x32 in black and white as a bmp file format. This can be created in Paint and saved in Documents or Pictures as a bmp file.

As an example, see Haes Image below.



- Click on Open Logo
- Select the saved logo and click open.
- The logo will appear on the screen.
- Transfer the logo using transfer function.
- Logo will be transferred to connected panel.
- Dependency Mode:
 - o Disabled
 - o Type A
 - o Type B
 - o Type C
 - o Delay
- Type A Confirmation Time:
 - o 0m 30s to 10m 00s (in 30s increments)
- Type B Inhibit Time:
 - o 0m 30s to 4m 00s (in 30s increments)
- Type B Confirmation Time:
 - o 5m 00s to 15m 00s (in 30s increments)
- Investigation Delay:
 - o 0m 30s to 10m 00s (in 30s increments)

Apollo Options (only when Apollo panel selected)

- Core Enabled Loop 1
- Core Enabled Loop 2
- Core Enabled Loop 3
- Core Enabled Loop 4
- Device Polling LED

HAES CONFIGURATION PANEL

Addressable Configuration Panel 1.126 File Protocol						- 0	×
	Loop 1 Zone	s Groups Output Profiles	Panel Network	Transfer Mimic		Port: COM3	
Panel Configurations							
Name :	Panel 1			Company: Company			
No of Relay Cards :	None	-		System:			
Sounder Resound on New Zone :				Address/Details:			
PrePend Zone Names :							
No of Loops :	1	-				Open Logo	
Access Level 2 Code :	Set						
Access Level 3 Code :	Set						
Access Level 4 Code :	Set					Reset Logo	
LCD Brightness :	Min He	if Max					
LCD Contrast	1 2 3 4 5	6 7 8 9 10				Use Default Logo	
Buzzer Volume :	Low Low-Mid M	Tid High-Mid High					
Day Start Time :	6:00	* *		Dependency			
Night Start Time :	18:00	÷		Dependency Mode:	Disabled	·	
Battery Monitoring				Type A Confirmation Time:	5 m 00 s	·	
Battery Hi Impedence Monitoring:				Type B Inhibit Time:	1 m 00 s	<u> </u>	
Battery Charge During Alarm Monitoring:				Type B Confirmation Time:	10m 00 s	<u> </u>	
Earth Fault Monitoring :				Investigation Delay:	5 m 00 s	<u> </u>	
UPS Mode :							
Daylight Saving Start :	Last 🔄 Sunday	▼ March ▼					
Daylight Saving End :	Last 💌 Sunday	October V					
Daylight Auto Adjust:	No	•		Apollo Options			
				Core Enabled Loop 1	Core Enabled Loop2		
				Core Enabled Loop3	Core Enabled Loop4		

Network

The network allows up to 8 panels and 8 repeaters to be connected. Panel 1 is the master panel and must always be connected. The panels and repeaters can be given individual names. The configuration of the network has been designed to allow greater flexibility in determining which types of signals are transmitted and received by each panel and repeater. The outputs of each panel can be configured to behave differently depending on which panel the signal originated. The outputs triggered from local signals cannot be adjusted in this way and always follow the local settings.

The Network setup window is made up of three tabs:

a) Connected Panels

Defines which panels and repeaters are connected in the network and assigns names to each panel. The definition of connected panels is only needed for the configuration of panel 1. This configuration can also be discovered by the panel itself during the Learn process. The panel names must be separately written to each panel. They are not shared between panels over the network.

Addressable Configu File Protocol	ration Panel 1.126							- 🗆 X
B 🖨 🎘 🔛)		Image: Optimized line Image: Optimized linted line Image: Optimized line	Loop 4 Zones	Groups Outp	wit Profiles Panel	Transfer Mimic	Port: COM6	Refresh Connect
Network C	Configurati	ion						
Connecte	ed Panels	Network Option	s Network	(Profiles	5			
	Panel Name					Repeater Name		
Panel 1	Panel 1				Repeater 1	Repeater 1		
Panel 2	Panel 2				Repeater 2	Repeater 2		
Panel 3	Panel 3				Repeater 3	Repeater 3		
Panel 4	Panel 4				Repeater 4	Repeater 4		
Panel 5	Panel 5				Repeater 5	Repeater 5		
Panel 6	Panel 6				Repeater 6	Repeater 6		
Panel 7	Panel 7				Repeater 7	Repeater 7		
Panel 8	Panel 8				Repeater 8	Repeater 8		

b) Network Options

(These features are only available in firmware version 1.5 onwards.)

Defines which types of events, statuses and keypresses are transmitted to the network and which types are received from each of the other panels on the network. The events are the messages that appear on the display and are mostly defined by the screen on which they are shown. The status defines the state of the LEDs and all the outputs and sounders of a panel. Key presses define user actions and can be one of the following: Silence, Resound, Mute or Reset. At the top of the tab are a few settings that apply to the whole panel. These are the address of the panel, whether general disablements and the zone LEDs are local only, and whether the network is fault tolerant. The rest of the tab is split into two sections, one defines which signals are transmitted over the network and the other defines which signals are received from each of the other panels. The top check boxes of the receive section change the state of all the check boxes below it and can be used as a convenient shortcut. The local signals from a panel's own devices are always enabled and so these settings are greyed out. The different categories are:

Delays – the status and events indicating a delayed alarm state.

Evacuate – the status and events indicating an evacuate state.

Alarm – the status and events indicating an alarm state.

Fault – any fault status and event.

Disables – any status and events indicating individual disablements. General disablements are handled by a global setting for the whole panel.

Tests – any status and events indicating a zone is in test mode.

CC & Pulse – any status and event indicating an active input on the Class Change or Pulse inputs.

Group Activations - any activation associated with groups.

Resound – keypress events associated with the Resound button.

Silence – keypress events associated with the Silence button.

Reset – keypress events associated with the Reset button.

Mute - keypress events associated with the Mute button.

Buzzer on Alarm – Received alarms will be automatically muted.

Buzzer on Fault – Received faults will be automatically muted.

Note: Changes in the configuration on this page do not affect any currently active events, statuses or disablements. These changes should be made while the panel is in a quiescent state.

Addressable Configuration Panel 1.128
File Protocol



Network Configuration

Connected Panels Network Options Network Profiles

Select address to configure 1 🔄 Local Disablements Only 🗌 Display Global Disablements 🗹 Display Local Zones Only 🗹 Fault Tolerant Network 🗹

Send signals to all panels	Send 🔽 Delays	Send 🔽	Send 🔽 Faults	Send 🔽 Disables	Send Tests	Send Group	Send CC 🗹 and Pulse	Send 🗹 Evacuate	Send 🔽 Resound	Send 🔽 Silence	Send 🔽 Reset	Send 🗹 Mute		
	Allow Delays	Allow Alarms	Allow Faults	Allow Disables	Allow Tests	Allow Group Activations	Buzzer on Alarm	Buzzer on Fault	Allow CC and Pulse	Allow Evacuate	Allow Resound	Allow Silence	Allow Reset	Allow Mute
Select all panels					\checkmark									
Receive signals from selected pa	nel													
From Panel 1														
From Panel 2														
From Panel 3														
From Panel 4														
From Panel 5														
From Panel 6											\checkmark			
From Panel 7				\checkmark	\checkmark				\checkmark					
From Panel 8			\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark				\checkmark	\checkmark				
From Repeater 1			\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark				\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark			
From Repeater 2			\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark				\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark			
From Repeater 3				\checkmark					\checkmark	\checkmark				
From Repeater 4			\checkmark	\checkmark					\checkmark	\checkmark				
From Repeater 5				\checkmark					\checkmark					
From Repeater 6									\checkmark					
From Repeater 7														
From Repeater 8														

c) Network Profiles

(These features are only available in firmware version 1.5 onwards.)

Defines how the loop devices, fire relay, fault relay and the two sounder circuits should behave when the source of an active status is from another panel. The checkbox at the top of each column enables this feature for each output. Otherwise, the behaviour follows the general panel settings. Each entry selects the output profile to use when the active status is from the corresponding panel which can be different for each panel. The selection at the top of each column changes all the entries below it to the same value and can be used as a convenient shortcut. The setting for devices on the same panel as the active status are not used and so are greyed out. Instead, the general panel settings are followed.

-			CO Loop 1	Loop	2	CO Loop 3	Loo	op 4	Zones	Groups	Output Pro	files Pane	Network	Transfer	Mimic	Port: COM3	▼ Refresh	Disconne
twork Co	onfigurat	tion Net	wor	·k O	ntic	ons	Ne	etwo	ork P	rofile	s							
elect address to	configure	1 🗧 :	Select	Output	: Profi	le for	each p	panel.	Choose	e from th	e profiles	defined i	n the Outp	ut Profiles	section.			
rom any panel	Loop Devices	Fire Rela	y	Fault Relay	4	Circuit	ler t 1	Soun Circu	der it 2									
rom Panel 1	1		4	1	÷	1	÷.	1	÷									_
om Panel 2	1	1	÷.	1	÷	1	÷	1	÷.									
om Panel 3	1	1	Â	1	4	1	A	1	A									
om Panel 4	1	1	A V	1	÷	1	4 ¥	1	*									
om Panel 5	1	1	A V	1		1	* *	1	A V									
om Panel 6	1	1	A V	1	*	1	* *	1	*									
om Panel 7	1	1	4 	1	*	1	* *	1	*									
om Panel 8	1	1	*	1	* *	1	* *	1	* *									
om Repeater 1	1	1	×	1	*	1	*	1	*									
rom Repeater 2	1	1	*	1	* *	1	* *	1	*									
rom Repeater 3	1	1	A V	1	*	1	A V	1	*									
rom Repeater 4	1	1	A Y	1	*	1	*	1	*									
rom Repeater 5	1	1	*	1	*	1	*	1	A V									
rom Repeater 6	1	1	* *	1	* *	1	* *	1	A V									
rom Repeater 7	1	1	A V	1	*	1	*	1	*									
rom Repeater 8	1	1	* *	1	*	1	*	1	*									

Transfer

To transfer configuration data to/from the panel:

• Open panel and connect USB cable to the COM3 USB Port on the display card.



- Ensure panel is turned on.
- Select Transfer button on the toolbar.
- Click Refresh to populate the list of available COM Ports
- Click Connect to connect the Config Panel SW to the control panel's display card.
- Configure the data to be transferred by selecting required checkboxes:
 - Company Information
 - Panel Configuration
 - Zone Configuration
 - o Group Configuration
 - o Sounder Profile Configuration
 - All Devices Configuration
- After successfully connecting to the panel, selecting the Read from Panel or Write to Panel button begins the data transfer. % of transfer completed will be displayed. Selecting the Download Events button begins the transfer of the panel's historical events into a CSV file.
- Begin the transfer of data to/from the panel by clicking the appropriate control:
 - Read from Panel
 - Write to Panel
- A dialog will open, warning of data being overwritten.

Panel Configuration Tone Configuration	
7 Zone Confin ration	
Group Config	×
Sounder Prot Data in the File could be o	verwritten.
All Devices C	
Yes	No
Yes	No
Read from Panel	

- Click Yes to continue with download/upload.
- Progress for the transfer will be displayed by the progress bars.

Addressable Configuration Panel 1.126 File Protocol													– 🗆 ×
	CO Loop 1	O Loop 2	Loop 3	CO Loop 4	Zones	Groups	Output Profiles	Panel	(B) Network	1 Transfer	E Mmc	Port: COM3	• <u>Refresh</u> Disconnect
				Down	load/Uploa	ad Option	15						
					Company Info Panel Configur Zone Configur Group Configu Sounder Profile All Devices Cor Network Confi	mation ation ration r Configuration rifiguration guration	on Toggle All						
				🚺 Rea	ad from Panel				0%				
				🚺 Wei	te to Panel				0%				
				Dow	nioad Events				0%				

- On completion of data transfer:
 - o Click Disconnect.
 - Remove USB connection from display card.

Any differences between the config transferred to the panel and the Loops/devices connected to the panel will initiate a Fault on the panel, accompanied by Illumination of the General Fault LED, together with illumination of any other appropriate fault LED (System Fault, Sounders, etc.), and a fault warning tone being audible.

(FRULT (1:CARD - L) 2:BATTERV 3:DEV - LO 4:DEV - LO	A00 F19 00P 01 NOT LE - CHARGER LOW 0P 01 01 TYPE 0P 01 02 TYPE	DOO TOO COO 9 ARNT OR HIGH CHANGED CHANGED		Fire Zone 1 Fire Zone 2 Fire Zone 3 Fire Zone 4	Fire Zone 10 Fire Zone 11 Fire Zone 12 Fire Zone 13
		5		Fire Zone 5 Fire Zone 6 Fire Zone 7 Fire Zone 8	Fire Zone 14 Fire Zone 15 Fire Zone 16 Fire Zone 17
General Fire	Delay Status	Sounders Test Mode		Fire Zone 9	Fire Zone 18
🋑 Supply Healthy 🧲	🗩 Supply Fault 🥏	System Fault			

Any such differences/conflicts should be addressed, either on the Configuration Panel SW, prior to uploading to the panel, or directly on the control panel, using the Config menus.

Mimic

The Mimic button opens a graphical presentation of the panel controls, which mimics the controls and LCD screen. The controls and display on the Mimic graphic are only operational whilst the Config Panel is connected to the fire control panel (connect button).



INSTALLATION

Install the Haes Configuration Panel software on a laptop/tablet:

- From the Haes Website (<u>https://haes-tech.com</u>) navigate to the DOWNLOADS page.
- Download the installer.
- Follow the on-screen prompts.

CONFIGURING THE SYSTEM

New Panel Setup

To setup a new configuration for a panel:

- Select New.
- New Panel Wizard dialog opens.
- Select Protocol (Argus/Apollo).
- Select Number of Loops (1 4).
- Click Continue.

Introduction Image: Select the Applicable protocol and number of loops Protocol Image: Applicable Protocol and number of loops Protocol Image: Applicable Protocol and number of loops Image: Applicable Protocol and number of loops Image: Applicable Protocol Image: A	New Panel Wizard	?	×	
This wizard will help you setup a new Panel. First up we need to select the Protocol the Panel will use. Select the Applicable protocol and number of loops Protocol Argus Apollo Repeater Panel Number of Loops 1 Loop 2 Loops 3 Loops 4 Loops 		Introduction		
Go Back Continue Cancel		This wizard will help you setup a new Panel. First up we need to select the Protocol the Panel will of Select the Applicable protocol and number of loops Protocol Argus Apollo Repeater Panel Number of Loops 1 Loop 2 Loops 3 Loops 4 Loops Continue Ca	use.	

 If configuring a 3 or 4 zone panel, with additional zone LEDs on the display (36 LEDs), click the Extra Zones Fitted? Checkbox.

	New New	Panel Wi	zard							?	\times	
~					Numbe	r of Zo	ne LEI	05				-
G profiberster get Operationer getarbenster Getarbenster Getarbenster get Melsense Dester Getarbenster Dester get Neuer Dester Getarbenster - des getarbenster - des					Tick this panel.e	box if a e . there ar a Zones F	e 18 or 3 itted?	t display it	s fitted to DS on the	the display.		Inclusion (Construction)
Namal Delastor - chi Iprical Delastor Manetalia Cali Pore						Go	Back	Cont	inue	Cance	4	-
aligen Realistic Cal	1	-										
Ny Ougue Musius Par Ininy Ougue Musiuk D	21	11	7	24	75	N	19	2	2			

- Click Continue.
- To change the number of zones selected, or the protocol to be used, click Go Back.
- Complete the System Information fields (System Name/Company Name and Address/Detail).

New Panel Wizard		? ×
	System Information	
	Please fill in all Applicable fields.	
	System Name:	
	Company name:	
	Address/Detail:	
	Go Back Continue	Cancel

- Click Continue.
- The Complete Your Panel Setup dialog will display the information entered for the panel setup.
- To change any information, click Go Back.

• To complete the initial setup of the panel information, click Done.



• To save the current configuration, at any time, click Save or Save As for new configurations.

System Design

Loop Setup

Populating a Loop

Using the setup page for each loop (Loop1, Loop 2, etc.), populate the Loop address tables with devices from the device list by:

- using the curser to drag and drop individual devices, from the device list, onto the required address.
- If the same device is required in multiple addresses, select the device in the list and click the rubber stamp button (next to the Filter dialog box). Click in each address where the device is required. To turn off the rubber stamp feature, simply click the stamp button again.
- Devices can be cut, copied, and pasted into another address, or deleted; by right-clicking the device address.

Configuring devices on a Loop

When the Loop has been populated with devices, by selecting a populated address the configuration graphical display, on the right of the screen displays the device at that address together with a table of information for configuring the individual device. The table differs between input and output devices and is the same as appears in Zone and Group views.

To configure the device, refer to Configuring devices in a Loop, Zone or Group.

Zone Setup

Populating a Zone

Devices allocated to loop addresses can be divided into Zones, either individually or in groups.

- Select device from the device list and drag-and-drop into the required Zone in the List of All Zones.
- To move multiple devices at the same time:
 - o in the device list, select the first device.
 - o press and hold Ctrl key and select the other required devices.
 - when all devices have been selected, release Ctrl key and drag-and-drop the devices into the required Zone on the List of All Zones.

Configuring a Zone

Selecting a populated Zone in the List of all Zones, the Selected Zone Devices table shows the devices allocated to that Zone. The configuration graphic, on the right of the page, illustrates the Zone number and the Device Population of the Zone, together with three configurable attributes for the whole Zone:

- Zone Name
- Dependency (OFF/ON)
- Tone Profile (Default/Profile 1 to Profile 15)



Configuring devices in a Zone

Selecting individual devices in the Selected Zone Devices table opens the configuration graphic for that device. The configuration graphical display provides a table of information for configuring the individual device. The table differs between input and output devices and is the same as appears in Loop and Group views.

To configure the device, refer to Configuring devices in a Loop, Zone or Group.

Groups Setup

Forming devices into Groups

Devices allocated to loop addresses can be divided into Groups, either individually or in groups.

- Select a device from the device list and drag-and-drop into the required Group in the list of Groups.
- To move multiple devices at the same time:
 - o in the device list, select the first device.
 - o press and hold Ctrl key and select the other required devices.
 - when all devices have been selected, release Ctrl key and drag-and-drop the devices into the required Group in the list of Groups.

Configuring a Group

Selecting a populated Group, from the list of Groups, displays all devices allocated to that Group in the two tables to the right of the list of Groups. The devices are split between input devices, in the top table, and output devices in the lower table. Dual use devices, such as detectors with a sounder base appear in both tables. The configuration graphic, on the right of the page, illustrates the Group number and the Device Population of the Group, together with six configurable attributes for the whole Group:

- Group Name
- Activation Mode:

- Disabled use to temporarily disable the activation of a group without having to change the membership of the group.
- Normal Any single input device activation, both alarm and non-alarm, will activate the group.
- 2 Stage The first device to activate will activate the first stage output state. The second and subsequent device activations will activate the normal group output state.
- Coincident The group only becomes active when the number of active input devices equals or exceeds the alarm count described below.
- Isolation The activation of the group will disable all other devices in the group apart from the device that caused the activation. Only devices with the "non alarm" setting checked can activate the group.
- Alarm Count The number of input devices in the group that need to be activated, before the group becomes activated. This only applies to the Coincident mode.
- Delay time The amount of time, in seconds, to elapse between the last input device in the group being triggered and the group becoming active. This only applies to the Normal and Coincident modes.
- Latching checkbox When this is set, the activation of the group is latched and must be cleared by a
 reset.
- Tone Profile (for the output device(s)) This overrides the system and zone profile settings, but only for group activations. The individual profile setting still has top priority.
 - o **Default**
 - Profile 1 to 15

Note: sounder and output activations can still be silenced and resounded.

Selecting individual devices in the input and output device tables opens the configuration graphic for that device. The configuration graphical display provides a table of information for configuring the device. The table differs between input and output devices and is the same as appears in Loop and Zone views.

To configure the device, refer to Configuring devices in a Loop, Zone or Group.

Configuring devices in a Loop, Zone or Group

Selecting individual devices (or multiple devices of the same type) in either the Loop addresses, Selected Zone Devices list or the Group input and output device tables opens the configuration graphic for that device. The configuration graphical display provides a table of information for configuring the device type. The table differs between input and output devices and is the same in Loop, Zone and Group views.

To select multiple devices at the same time:

- in the device list, select the first device.
- press and hold Ctrl key and select the other required devices.
- when all devices have been selected, release Ctrl key.

The device configuration graphical display provides a table of information for configuring the selected device. The table differs between input and output devices:

- Input device (Call Point, Detectors and detector sounder base output device, input modules, etc.):
 - o Read
 - o Write
 - o Address
 - o Description
 - o Part Number
 - o Type
 - o Subtype
 - Zone (1 to 36)
 - Input Groups (checkboxes for Groups 1 to 64) and/or
 - Output Groups (checkboxes for Groups 1 to 64)
 - o Name
 - Day Sensitivity drop-down:
 - Sensitivity 1 4
 - Night Sensitivity drop down:
 - Sensitivity 1 4

- Detector Base:
 - Standard Base
 - Sounder Base (opens the following output controls):
 - Alarm Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Zonal Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Evac Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Delay Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Group Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Stage Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Alert Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Class Change (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
 - Sounder Profile:
 - o Default/Profile 1 to 15
 - and
 - o Enable/Disable

Note: The output attributes for the individual device (Alarm Response to Class Change) are disabled if the Sounder Profile is set to Enable.

- Multitone Sounder Base (opens Sounder Base output controls, above, plus the following):
 - Tone A (1. Alternate Warble(250ms) to 31.FP1063.1 Telecom)
 - Tone B (automatically applied, depending on setting of Tone A)
 - Volume (Disabled/Volume 1/Volume 2/Volume 3)
- Input Attributes checkboxes:
 - Latching The input device is latched and a reset is needed to clear the active state.
 - Dependency Enables the system dependency option for this device.
 - Non-Alarm When set, an active input from this device is not considered to be an indication of a fire and therefore the panel does not go into the alarm state.
- Output Responses checkbox:
 - Silenceable



- Output device (Beacons, Sounders, output module, etc.):
 - o Read
 - o Write
 - o Address
 - o Description
 - o Part Number
 - о Туре
 - o Subtype
 - o Zone
 - o Input Groups

and/or

- Output Groups
- o Name
- Alarm Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Zonal Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Evac Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Delay Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Group Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Stage Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Alert Response (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Class Change (Output Off/Tone A/Tone B)
- Sounder Profile:
 - Default/Profile 1 to 15 and

- Enable/Disable
- Output Responses checkbox:
 - Silenceable

Note: The output attributes for the individual device (Alarm Response to Class Change) are disabled if the Sounder Profile is set to Enable.

1	Port : • Refresh Connect
	1
	tead 🔲 Write
Address :	15
Description :	Vega Wall Sounder(3 tones)/Beacon
Part Number :	VLS 100-AV
Type :	15
Subtype :	0
Zone:	Zone 1 ·
Output Groups:	0
Name :	LOOP 1 DEVICE 16
Alarm Response:	Tone A *
Zonal Response:	Tone A *
Evac Response:	Tone A *
Delay Response:	Tone 8 *
Group Response	Tone A ·
Stage Response:	Tone 8
Alert Response:	Tone 8 *
Class Change:	Tone A
Sounder Profile:	Default • Enable •
Output Respons	e – –

• The Read and Write controls are used to transfer configuration data to or from the fire control panel, for the individual device.



www.haes-tech.com

